
I’On Assembly 

Board of Trustees Meeting 

Monday, November 13, 2023 

Board Meeting 6:00 P.M. 

 

 
AGENDA 

 

➢ Homeowner Forum 

➢ Call to Order 

➢ Approval of Minutes:   

➢ October 16, 2023 Board Meeting Minutes 

➢ President’s Report 

➢ Distribution of Creek Club funds 

➢ Board Election Update 

➢ Treasurer Report 

➢ VOTE to approve the Finance Committee’s recommendation for 

investment of funds in the Lease Termination Fund 

 

➢ VOTE to approve the 2024 budget 

➢ Amenities Report 

➢ Infrastructure/Landscape Report 

➢ VOTE to approve proposals for Westlake paths  

➢ VOTE to approve Charleston Tree Experts proposal for root remediation 

and diseased tree removals along marsh trail  

 

➢ Covenants Report 

➢ IDC Report 

➢ Communications Report 

➢ Secretary Report 

➢ Adjournment 



 

1 
 

I’On Assembly Board of Trustees Meeting 

October 16, 2023 Board Meeting Minutes 

 

Members Present: Julie Hussey, Bob Adams, Lon Waggoner, Michael Spalding, 
Simon O’Shea and Stephen Wood 

Management Company: Emily Simpson  

Homeowner Forum: Andy Minkin, 8 Edenton; Tom O’Brien, 15 Hopetown; Ed 
Clem, 167 E. Shipyard; Barbara Adams, 35 Eastlake; George Toole, 130 W. 
Shipyard; Roy Rathbun, 30 Mises; Richard Bondy, 107 Civitas; Monika Bonn-
Miller, 37 Jane Jacobs; Brad Walbeck, 114 N. Shelmore; Leah Lindemuth, 67 
Sanibel; BJ Barnes, 27 Mobile; Craig Berry, 10 Boathouse; Adam Young, 46 
Saturday 

Monika Bonn-Miller attended the homeowners forum to state to the Board that 
I’On should not pay for the golf cart that will only be used by Ravenel employees 
and the funds should not be used from the landscape budget because the landscape 
budget does not allow for purchases of vehicles and since the management team 
are employees of Ravenel then Ravenel should have paid for the golf cart.  She 
asked since it will only be used by Mary and Emily, who owns it and it will have to 
be insured, licensed and maintained, and I’On is not in the business to provide 
vehicles for employees.  She continued to say that we hired Ravenel and are using 
their employees and does not see the justification for the purchase of a golf cart 
and sees no need for it. 

Andy Minkin thanked the Board for the strong statement against the cemetery on 
CV-9 and was gratified that the Board voted to accept the committee 
recommendations. He stated that this was the statement that residents were looking 
for earlier on in the process and unfortunately it required a lot of angst, anger and 
cost to get to this point, and hopes in the future that it is a lesson that if there is 
something from the developer that it is not in the best interest of the neighborhood 
the board will stand up and stay no and maybe try to avoid so much of the angst 
that occurred around CV-9.  Andy proceeded to speak about the paid maternity 
leave to a Ravenel employee, and stated it is basically a GoFundMe gift and is 
unusual that someone would pay for the maternity leave when it is not in the 
contract. Lastly, Andy mentioned the discussion on the Creek Club lawsuit funds 



 

2 
 

that was in the September meeting minutes and the benefits to the plaintiffs unless 
they spent a lot of time, legal effort and money, is baked into the successful 
resolution of the suit and the gratefulness of the neighbors saying thank you and 
not expect a renumeration. Andy knows it was labeled as a class action suit and 
asked the board to look into other successful lawsuits against developer by HOA’s, 
and if plaintiffs received renumeration and asked what is the precedent, and lastly 
Andy stated that personal gratification must be sufficient. Roy Rathbun stated he 
wanted to respond to a point that Andy made; with regard to the maternity leave 
payment, we acknowledge that she is not an employee of the HOA and also been 
with us for 8 years and secondly, her supervisor said she would take on all of her 
responsibilities during her maternity leave. It would have been very easy for 
Ravenel to have said that Emily needs support, and Ravenel could have hired a 
temp for 20 hours a week $25/hour and it would have been more money we would 
have been paying and economically we are in a better place than where we would 
be. 

Bob Adams discussed the email that was sent by Preserve I’On, and as Treasurer 
for the Assembly, he wanted address one egregious false statement. The email 
stated that the Board has made, “payment of association monies to individuals”. 
Bob stated that Michael Koon told Tom O’Brien that this statement related to 
alleged payment by the Board of the HOA to Mary James in connection with her 
maternity leave salary, and stated that this statement is not true.  Bob stated five 
facts: 1) The board has not authorized or made any payments from HOA monies to 
Mary James for her maternity leave salary, nothing. 2) All money paid for the 
HOA were performed by Ravenel employees is governed by a contract between 
the HOA and Ravenel. Ravenel supplies, our employees, Mary and Emily, and 
Ravenel alone pays their salaries. We only learned this spring that Ravenel does 
not provide maternity leave. 3) One option with respect to Mary’s maternity leave 
would have been for Ravenel to provide a temp who has no knowledge of the 
Assembly and how we operate and they would work with Emily. Under that option 
Mary’s salary payment from Ravenel would cease while she is on maternity leave. 
4) Emily proposed another approach. Emily specifically offered to the Board to 
perform all of Mary’s duties while Mary was on maternity leave. This approach 
would result in Mary getting paid by Ravenel during her maternity leave and it also 
ensured that all HOA work needs are satisfied. Further, it would result in no cost to 
the HOA. 5) The Board accepted Emily’s extremely generous offer. Since then, 
Emily has performed the work of two people and Mary received all her salary from 
Ravenel during the maternity leave. Bob formally requested that Preserve I’On 



 

3 
 

LLC immediately send out an email to all the 500 persons who received the 
October 11th email, and that email must contain the statement that their prior email 
contained a serious false and misleading statement and it must contain a correction 
that the Board has not made any improper payments to individuals from HOA 
money. Lastly, Bob stated that in this day and age, he found it unacceptable that 
Ravenel does not pay maternity leave, and he intends to bring this up with Ravenel 
during the next contract negotiation. Tom O’Brien mentioned that he was told a 
payment of $3,000 was made, but after just hearing Bob, no payment was ever 
made, and even if it was, the Board provides the individuals bonuses based on a 
performance method that is in place, it is what the Board chose to do because of 
everything Mary and Emily do for the neighborhood.  

Simon O’Shea followed up on Andy Minkin’s statement regarding CV-9 and how 
the CV-9 committee came together to issue their recommendations to the Board. 
He mentioned that we all live in a community and the neighborly thing to do is to 
ask for help, but when people approach the Board and say this is a problem and if 
you don’t address it, I am going to sue you and sue the Board, that changes the 
relationship from being a neighbor to neighbor and potentially dealing with 
litigation, and lastly if the Board was approached in a different manner about CV-
9, it would have been addressed in a timely manner. Bob asked Andy about his 
statement about who on the board agreed to a cemetery, and Bob said no one 
agreed. He mentioned that the Board received a letter from the Assembly attorney 
about the lawsuit funds and it will be included with the minutes from this meeting, 
and without Brad and Lea Ann there would not have been a lawsuit and we would 
not be where we are not without them. Julie thanked Andy for this comment on the 
CV-9 committee putting the statement forward to the Board then the Board could 
accept it from the homeowners. 

George Toole stated he had nothing more to add during the homeowner forum. He 
mentioned that he has attended the last several Board meetings because there 
seems to be a lot of misinformation and miscommunication out in the 
neighborhood. 

Tom O’Brien stated he has lived here for 13 years and the neighborhood is better 
now than 13 years ago. Secondly, he stated he is opposed to a cemetery or 
mausoleum in I’On. He mentioned that he served on the Board for eight years, and 
was President for three, the neighborhood’s biggest issue is getting qualified 
people to run for the Board and for many years we have a tough time to fill Board 



 

4 
 

positions and fill committee roles. While he was on the Board, he went through the 
sports court project and Phase 11, and many statements were made, some accurate 
and others not correct at all, and is why he decided to come off the Board. 
Secondly, Tom discussed governance, and that residents have been saying a 
neighborhood vote should have been taken, this doesn’t happen in our country, 
state or city. Governance happens when you elect the members to be able to make 
these decisions for you.  

Roy Rathbun agreed to everything Tom stated. He also values the community that 
we have and that is the best thing about I’On. But when an LLC was established 
and caused the community to spend $60k as a result of confrontational issues, it 
was not helpful for building our community, and it is unconscionable that the 
Board was being threatened with lawsuits. Bob chimed in and apologized that he 
got upset, and it is because his integrity was being challenged and integrity and 
honesty means everything. 

Brad Walbeck attended the meeting because he thought the funds from the lawsuit 
was finally resolved, and can finally put an end to this.  Brad mentioned he was 
shocked to hear comments from residents that he did it for money. He purchased 
his property when he was 29 years old, filed the lawsuit when he was 39 years old, 
and now, he is 52 and been dealing with this for 14 years. Brad briefly explained 
he spent 19 vacation days from his employer, was countersued by the Grahams, 
and no one paid for his parking, lunches, and mileage going to the Supreme Court. 
He encouraged those present at the meeting to attend the meeting on Thursday to 
learn more about the case, as there is a lot of misinformation going around and 
Thursday evening is a chance to understand the case. Bob reiterated that Brad 
stated he did not do it for money and if it wasn’t for Brad and Lea Ann, the 
Assembly would have nothing. Brad said that when he got his property report 
when he bought his lot, it showed what we would own, and a week after he closed 
the Grahams changed the language and never notified him, and when they went to 
sell it in 2009, that is when he said that’s ours, and that is what started the lawsuit. 
Tom said if we lost the deep water access it would have a huge impact on the 
values of this neighborhood.  

Ed Clem joined to listen in to the Board meeting. He mentioned that when he was 
on the Board, they had their problems too and there was a board member who 
threatened to sue the rest of the board, and he is hoping we are going to grow out 
of this.  



 

5 
 

Barbara Adams said thank you to Emily, and it is gratifying and admirable that she 
stepped up while Mary was on maternity leave. She was shocked to hear that 
maternity leave was not provided and asked if it is a South Carolina thing, to refuse 
maternity leave. Julie mentioned it is based on the business size. 

Dick Bondy said he read the notes from the last meeting and understood that a 
communication was sent out to the community about changes in the IDC 
procedure, and he did not receive the email. Emily informed him she will resend 
the emails to him. 

BJ Barnes dialed in to listen and to hear what is going on in the community. She 
said her husband had contributed feedback to the proposed IDC guidelines and 
wanted to know the status of it. Stephen chimed in to let BJ know that the 
comment period has been extended until the end of the month. Lastly, she 
mentioned that she briefly helped with the amphitheater subcommittee and people 
have been asking her what is going on with it and wanted to let the Board know 
that people are asking. Simon informed her that he had messaged the committee 
earlier in the day and will provide an update to the community shortly. 

Call to Order: 6:49PM by Julie Hussey 

Approval of Minutes:   

Julie Hussey provided Emily with a minor amendment to the September 18 meeting 
minutes.  Lon made a motion to approve the amended September 18, 2023 I’On 
Assembly Meeting Minutes. Bob Seconded. All in favor. Motion passed 
unanimously. 

Amenity Report: 

Simon reported that the playground subcommittee had met with two companies, 
and should be receiving the proposals within the next couple of days.  

Simon mentioned that once boating season comes to an end, the main dock will be 
resurfaced, as it is still under warranty, and there are 6 rotted boards that will also 
be replaced at the same time. 

The Eastlake Boathouse recently had several rotted boards replaced and the entire 
structure was repainted. This was a previously approved project, when the Board 
approved the 2023 Reserve/Capital budget. 



 

6 
 

Lastly, Simon informed everyone that the playground inspections were completed 
on September 20th and there were some very minor repairs noted at a couple of 
playgrounds, and will be completed soon by our maintenance team. 

President’s Report:  

Julie reminded everyone about the meeting at Town Hall on Thursday at 6:00pm to 
discuss the Creek Club lawsuit.  There will be a presentation and conversation with 
Justin Lucey, and we are hoping that Brad and Lea Ann will also be in attendance.   

There is a vote for the Board to authorize disbursement of the legal fees and 
expenses from the Walbeck et. al versus I’On Company to the Lucey Law Firm. 
Simon made a motion to approve the disbursement. Bob seconded. All in favor. 
Motion passed unanimously.  

Julie presented another vote to the Board for upon receipt of the monies from the 
Lucey Law firm and per the Finance Committees recommendation, that first we 
repay the advance from the reserve fund in the amount of $285k, and secondly add 
$729k to the strategic fund. Bob made a motion and indicated it was mentioned in 
the last meeting and recommended by the Finance committee to repay the reserve 
fund $285k and to add $729k to the strategic fund. Simon seconded. All in favor. 
Motion passed unanimously. Julie mentioned that the $729k going into the 
strategic fund account, is the account we have been building up to terminate the 
lease with 148 Civitas in 2034. 

 
Treasurer Report:  

Bob reported that last month we have paid a total of about $106k in legal fees, and 
that  $75k shows on the executive dashboard due to $31k from last years budget, 
and we have received more legal invoices totaling around $38k, and we are 
expecting to be around $144k at the end of the year. Bob stated he is appalled at 
the amount of legal fees we have had to pay this year, and we had budgeted $80k 
for the year, and as Simon previously said, we had to pay $60k in legal fees for 
getting an opinion for suing the I’On Company and threats of suits against the 
Board and individual members. 

Julie mentioned that 148 Civitas has filed a new complaint which will require 
additional legal fees for next year. 

 



 

7 
 

Landscape and Infrastructure Report: 

Julie presented the Landscape and Infrastructure report, and noted the new layout 
of the report, which will make it easier to follow.  

A motion came forth from the committee to appoint a resident to the committee.  

Motion made by the Landscape Committee to appoint Dennis Jordan to the 
Landscape & Infrastructure committee. Lon seconded. All in favor. Motion passed 
unanimously.  

Julie pointed out that the golf cart had been delivered and is stored securely in the 
Scramble shed. Also noted the Greenery added new granite material to the slick 
spots on the Westlake path; and the Greenery completed the first phase of cleaning 
up and widening the marsh trail, and the second phase will be topdressing. Emily 
mentioned she will be walking the trail tomorrow with the Greenery to get a 
proposal for the second phase. 

Covenants Report:  

Lon reported that year to date 50 property violations have been sent and there are 
currently 14 properties who are actively being sent violation letters for non-
compliance, and there is one property that the Board agreed to fine that has come 
into compliance. 

IDC Liaison Report:  

Stephen reported that the deadline for comments on the proposed guidelines have 
been extended until the end of the month, and we have received several comments 
from residents, and one board member went through the guidelines with a fine 
toothed comb, and we have asked our attorney for input to understand the authority 
of the Board and the IDC as we work through the guideline recommendations.  

Communications Committee:   

Michael mentioned there was nothing new to add to the report that was submitted.  

Secretary: No Report 

Other Business:  

There being no further business to come before the Board of Trustees, the meeting 
adjourned at 7:18pm. The next meeting will be on November 13, 2023 at 6:00PM 
and will be held at 159 Civitas Street.   



 

8 
 

 

Respectfully submitted by____________________ 
Michael Spalding, Board Secretary 

 

  



Executive Dashboard 10.31.23

10

Annual YTD YTD

Summary Budget Actual Budget

Income Statement 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 Oct-23 Oct-23

Assessments 799,025$    795,350$    799,458$    914,400$    1,066,800$    1,143,000$  1,257,300$  1,045,000$    1,047,750$    

Delinquent Dues - 3,675 - - - - -$    

IDC Revenue 21,450 17,450 20,150 34,300 48,475 37,750          35,000          35,025 29,167$    

Dock Closure Rev 14,700 24,150 21,000 16,800 26,600 39,550          12,600          23,100 10,500$    

Interest 23,954 22 2 - 6,271 -$    

Misc Income 5,586 11,097        29,099 32,879 17,350 28,367          13,525          18,248 9,605$    

 Total Revenue 840,761$    851,722$    869,708$    1,022,333$    1,159,246$    1,248,668$  1,318,425$  1,127,644$    1,097,022$    

Payroll, Administrative, IDC 261,666$    258,941$    263,426$    286,826$    299,562$    295,344$    343,988$    236,016$    281,709$    

Legal & Professional 39,563 18,749        43,981 48,162 73,979 100,000        80,000          118,925         66,667$    

Landscaping & Maintenance 360,221 355,058      388,176 422,077         405,154         395,669        458,980        381,622         391,813$    

Utilities, Insurance, taxes 88,078 90,222        68,153 95,729 138,225         151,116        168,310        162,497 151,176$    

Reserve Contribution 39,000 41,500        41,500 41,500 192,192         202,033        208,520        208,520         208,520$    

Capital Projects 46,000 46,000        46,000 62,650 46,367 28,096          50,000          50,000 50,000$    

 Total Expenses 834,528$    810,470$    851,237$    957,994$    1,155,479$    1,172,258$  1,309,798$  1,157,581$    1,149,885$    

 Net Surplus 6,233$    41,252$    18,471$    64,339$    3,767$    76,411$    8,627$    (29,937)$    (52,863)$    

Prior Year's Actuals



Amenity Report 

November 13, 2023 

• The amphitheater subcommittee have been working for months to try to deliver a

structure that satisfies the needs of the neighborhood, the Trust and all our other

stakeholders while keeping costs within a relatively modest budget. While the

committee was initially confident in our ability to do this, as we’ve worked through the

process we have identified a series of additional items and issues that will add to the

overall project cost. The committee now believes that building a structure that is

aesthetically pleasing as well as functional for the community within the original budget

isn’t possible. We have instructed a local architectural practice, LFK architects, to do

some work to help us design and cost a structure that will be in keeping with the

Lowcountry vernacular and will satisfy the various stakeholder asks for the structure.

Once we have an accurate cost estimate for that structure, the Board will decide (with

the appropriate community engagement) whether to proceed with the new design or to

build back what was there before. I and the board are keenly aware of how long it has

been since the original structure has gone down. We appreciate the community’s

patience and we are working to resolve the rebuild, one way or the other, as soon as

possible. Titleholders will have an opportunity to review the proposed design and share

their thoughts before the board makes any final decisions.

• The playground subcommittee has received initial drawings and plans for the

playgrounds from multiple vendors. The subcommittee will meet in the next few weeks

to refine these initial plans into final versions that we can then submit to the board.

• Just For Fun Playgrounds found termite damage in the wooden structure for the tire

swing at the Ramble playground.  The tire swing was deemed a safety hazard and so has

been removed. We are going to have all wooden structures in all of the playgrounds

inspected for termite damage.  At this time, we don’t believe it makes sense to replace

the tire swing given the high cost involved and that the subcommittee is close to

recommending plans for a fully updated playground design.

• The main boat dock will be resurfaced the week of December 4th, as it is still under

warranty. 6 rotted boards will also be replaced at that time. The dock will be closed for

24 hours and the Assembly will send out an email notification to remind everybody

closer to the date.



Landscape & Infrastructure Report 

November 13, 2023 

Completed Since the Last Meeting 

- The Greenery installed the fall/winter annuals in all the common areas. 

- The Greenery has completed the enhancement of the Sowell/Ponsbury triangle.  

Coming Up 

- The Greenery has started preparations for the landscape enhancement in north-west corner of 

Eastlake. 

- The Landscape Committee and the Greenery are working diligently to address concerns relating 

to the marsh trail.  After numerous discussions, the project was broken into two phases. Prior 

to starting the second phase, the Landscape Committee and Emily walked the trail with 

Charleston Tree Experts to discuss the tree roots along the path, also during the meeting the 

certified arborist pointed out there are 7 severally diseased trees along the path that need to 

be removed. As stated in the report from Charleston Tree Experts, not all the roots can be 

removed, but there are ones that can be. VOTE NEEDED 

- The Landscape Committee received two proposals from the Greenery to top dress the paths 

along Westlake. One proposal is to complete the west-side where we initially covered the slick 

spots, and the second proposal is for topdressing the eastside of Westlake with the same 789 

granite. It is important to note that top dressing the paths along the lakes, and marsh trail, will 

need to be reapplied every 2 to 3 years. VOTE NEEDED 

Some of This Year’s Accomplishments 

- Pruned 50% of the community’s right-of-way trees. The other 50% will be completed in early 

2024. 

- Replaced the sod on the entrance and exit sides of the main entrance on N Shelmore. 

- Completed the lake mapping bathymetry and water quality testing. 

- Top dressed the Saturday Rd Park path and the south-side path on Maybank Green. 

- Phase one of the marsh trail clean-up was completed. 

Ongoing 

- The Committee and the Aquatics team are continuing to monitor and treat the algae in the 

lakes and canals.   

- The committee is working with our contract landscapers on reducing the reliance on gas 

equipment, which is a long-term goal. Our landscapers have tested non-fossil fuel equipment 

and currently, they do not have the capacity to satisfy the needs for a community of our size. 

The Committee will continue to keep this topic alive and will formally revisit our non-fossil fuel 

goals in advance of renewing the landscaping contract. 

- Committee continues to monitor the Westlake path drainage and the maintenance of the 

marsh trail. 

- Committee reviewed a lighting proposal to address safety concerns in the Scramble. 



1

Emily Simpson

From: ashley@charlestontreeexperts.com
Sent: Monday, November 6, 2023 6:21 AM
To: Emily Simpson; ashley@charlestontreeexperts.com
Subject: EXTERNAL: Charleston Tree Experts Proposal #43510 - I’On Assembly

 

159 Civitas St, Mount Pleasant, SC, 29464 

Tree Care Proposal  

Site Name: I’On Assembly  

Hi Emily, 

I enjoyed walking the marsh trail with you both! As we discussed, many of the tree roots can not 
be pruned due to their proximity to the originating trees, making them essential and structural 
roots. In those cases, I recommend raising the grade to the meet the height of the roots, however 
it must be done by hand and the material should not bury or be compacted over the tree roots. 
As a reminder, we discovered many diseased and hazardous trees posing an imminent risk to the 
trail and nearby homes. Please click the below link to review a proposal for the services we 
discussed and I recommend. Each proposed service is listed separately for your review. The 
corresponding asset (tree/plant/area) is labeled on the aerial map. Photos, if included, can be 
enlarged by clicking on the associated thumbnail.  

Service Line 1 & 2: Roots Pruning & Tree Treatment 
Air spade and root pruning of select roots determined to be eligible for remediation. The airspace 
is used to expose the tree roots and assure no essential or scaffolding roots are removed. This 
must be performed by a Certified Arborist and in tandem with tree treatment in areas with nearby 
trees as specified. Tree Treatment must continue monthly for 1 year. 
Service Lines 3-4: Removal and Stump Grinding 
Removal and stump grinding of 4 trees that are disease and pose an imminent risk. An additional 
existing stump is also accounted for. 
Service Lines 5-7: Tree Risk Assessment, Removal & Stump Grinding 
Removal and stump grinding of 3 protected trees (over 16" in diameter) that are diseased and 
pose an imminent risk. Since these trees require a permit from the Town of Mount Pleasant, a 
Tree Risk Assessment report is required to substantiate the necessity of removal in the permitting 
process. 
 

Should you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact me directly at (843) 
751-5592. Thank you for choosing Charleston Tree Experts. We look forward to exceeding your 
expectations! 



Proposed: 11/06/2023

Ravenel Associates
Root Remediation
PO #
Proposal: 43510
Contact: Emily Simpson 
Phone: (843) 266-3917
Email: Esimpson@ravenelassociates.com
Site: I’On Assembly 
Address: 159 Civitas St Suite 100
Mount Pleasant, SC 29464

Arborist: Ash Connelly
Phone: (843) 751-5592
Email: ashley@charlestontreeexperts.com
Company address: 2851 Maybank Hwy, Johns Island, SC
29455

Root Remediation Page 1 of 35

mailto:Esimpson@ravenelassociates.com


#1  Root Pruning

1) Excavation of soil and sediment with industry specialized air-powered excavation tool specified for fragile tree root systems to
expose root system for pruning.
2) Pruning back of select roots creating a hazard in nature path. Root pruning is to be done by Arborist who can determine
encroaching roots will affect tree stability. The Arborist's decision is solely based on visible root structure and cannot be held
responsible in the case of future whole tree failure.

Trees

#320 Roots #321 Roots #333 Roots

#343 Roots #365 Roots #366 Roots

#384 Roots

#2  ArborShield (Tree)

Our comprehensive tree preservation program targets nutrient deficiency, growth regulation and pest infestation impacting trees.
This program provides both fundamental protection & select specialty rehabilitation treatments* based on the tree condition in
combination with your property's individual needs. Monitoring and treating your trees at monthly intervals throughout the growing
season is also included. For a one year term, the program is billed $250 monthly and renewed annually.

*Conditions that require treatment applications on a more frequent basis or that require product beyond that originally prescribed
are NOT included in the ArborShield cost, including but not limited to salt intolerance, root and foliar diseases such as root rot,
blight, wilt, bacterial leaf spot, black spot, leaf spot, powdery mildew, rusts, and other harmful fungi.

Customer may cancel at anytime during the annual term with early cancellation fees applied as follows: 0-12 months of each
term, 30% of contractual cost for all remaining months of term. Cancellation fees are necessary and established in consideration
of the required material and product applied.

Trees

#344 Various Trees #368 Loblolly pine, Pinus taeda

#3  Removal

Black Tupelo (Asset 338): Remove tree to fence level and leave as snag for wildlife.
Water Oaks (#339 & #341) & Dead tree (#346) - Complete removal of tree to ground level* using safety practices as outlined in
ANSI Z133.1 safety standard. Haul away debris.

*or as low as surroundings permit
Cost does not include permitting fees, if applicable

Trees

#338 Black tupelo, Nyssa sylvatica #339 Water oak, Quercus nigra #341 Water oak, Quercus nigra

#346 Dead tree

Root Remediation Page 2 of 35

Charleston Tree Experts Ravenel Associates : IOn Assembly

Emily Simpson
Highlight

Emily Simpson
Highlight



#4  Stump Grind (SG)

Grind stump 6" to 8" below ground grade as permitted by surroundings unless otherwise specified. Back fill hole with resulting
mulch to a level grade and mound. (may be hauled away at customers request per additional charge unless specified in notes.)
***In the rare circumstance metal or concrete is found hidden in the stump or missed by the Arborist, there may be an additional
fee for replacement of grinder teeth. Fee may be waived depending on circumstance.

Trees

#339 Water oak, Quercus nigra #340 Stump #341 Water oak, Quercus nigra

#346 Dead tree

#5  Removal

Priority: Needs Permit 
Complete removal of tree to ground level* using safety practices as outlined in ANSI Z133.1 safety standard. Haul away debris.

*or as low as surroundings permit
Cost does not include permitting fees, if applicable

Trees

#342 Water oak, Quercus nigra #345 Water oak, Quercus nigra #347 Water oak, Quercus nigra

#6  Stump Grind (SG)

Grind stump 6" to 8" below ground grade as permitted by surroundings unless otherwise specified. Back fill hole with resulting
mulch to a level grade and mound. (may be hauled away at customers request per additional charge unless specified in notes.)
***In the rare circumstance metal or concrete is found hidden in the stump or missed by the Arborist, there may be an additional
fee for replacement of grinder teeth. Fee may be waived depending on circumstance.

Trees

#342 Water oak, Quercus nigra #345 Water oak, Quercus nigra #347 Water oak, Quercus nigra

#7  Tree Risk Assessment (TRA)

**Unless otherwise discussed, must be accepted in tandem with removal service.**
Inspection and documentation of hazards for the request of an approved tree removal permit. Inspection to determine the
structural stability of the tree, and inspect for cracks, defects, and abnormalities along the trunk and throughout the crown.
Assess the advancement of decay within known cavities. Provide reasonable pruning or tree removal recommendations.
Arborists cannot detect every condition that could possibly lead to the structural failure of a tree. Conditions are often hidden
within trees and below the ground. Arborists cannot guarantee that a tree will be healthy or safe under all circumstances, or for a
specific period of time.

Trees

#342 Water oak, Quercus nigra #345 Water oak, Quercus nigra #347 Water oak, Quercus nigra

Root Remediation Page 3 of 35

Charleston Tree Experts Ravenel Associates : IOn Assembly

Emily Simpson
Highlight

Emily Simpson
Highlight

Emily Simpson
Highlight

Emily Simpson
Highlight



#339 Water oak, Quercus nigra

Root Remediation Page 12 of 35

Charleston Tree Experts Ravenel Associates : IOn Assembly



#341 Water oak, Quercus nigra

Root Remediation Page 14 of 35

Charleston Tree Experts Ravenel Associates : IOn Assembly



#342 Water oak, Quercus nigra

Root Remediation Page 15 of 35

Charleston Tree Experts Ravenel Associates : IOn Assembly



#342 Water oak, Quercus nigra

Root Remediation Page 16 of 35

Charleston Tree Experts Ravenel Associates : IOn Assembly



#342 Water oak, Quercus nigra

Root Remediation Page 17 of 35

Charleston Tree Experts Ravenel Associates : IOn Assembly



#343 Roots

Root Remediation Page 18 of 35

Charleston Tree Experts Ravenel Associates : IOn Assembly



#345 Water oak, Quercus nigra

Root Remediation Page 24 of 35

Charleston Tree Experts Ravenel Associates : IOn Assembly



#346 Dead tree

Root Remediation Page 26 of 35

Charleston Tree Experts Ravenel Associates : IOn Assembly



#347 Water oak, Quercus nigra

Root Remediation Page 28 of 35

Charleston Tree Experts Ravenel Associates : IOn Assembly



#347 Water oak, Quercus nigra

Root Remediation Page 29 of 35

Charleston Tree Experts Ravenel Associates : IOn Assembly



 

November 13, 2023 Covenants Report 

 

Since the start of the year, we have sent 88 properties covenants violation letters. 

The majority of these violations include overall maintenance of properties for 

items such as mowing, weeding, pressure washing, painting, trash can screening, 

and landscaping of right of way strips. To date 70 out of these 88 properties have 

since come into compliance. Currently we are actively notifying 18 properties of 

noncompliance.  

 

The Covenants Team continues to work with the IDC to ensure final inspections 

and deposit refund requests are submitted in the 90-day timeframe per the 

Construction Deposit Policy. Per the CC&R’s, approved projects must be 

completed within 12 months of the approval date. Per the Construction 

Completion Deposit Policy, if a final inspection and deposit refund request is not 

submitted within the timeframe that is permitted for projects to be completed, 

the deposit will be deemed forfeited by the applicant to the Assembly. In the past 

month, we have sent 18 notices to properties that are due for final inspections. 

 

All political signs should be removed from properties by November 21st. As a 

reminder signs and holiday decorations are permitted to be installed 2 weeks 

before elections/holidays and must be removed within 2 weeks after. 



IDC Actions 

Month: October 2023 

 

Type # Reviewed 
(M/YTD) 

#Approved w/o 
Conditions 
(M/YTD) 

#Approved w/ 
Conditions 
(M/YTD) 

# Denied 
(M/YTD) 

Maintenance & Repairs (Apprvd. By NDC) 2/17 2/17   

Tree Removal 0/15 0/5 0/9 0/1 

Minor Exterior Changes 4/35 3/22 1/10 0/3 

Minor Landscape Changes 4/23 1/9 3/10 0/8 

Major Landscape Changes 1/25 0/3 0/9 1/13 

Structural Changes <625 sf 3/29 0/5 1/6 2/18 

Structural Changes >625 sf 0/2   0/2 

New Home Construction Preliminary Review 0/2 0/1  0/1 

New Home Construction Final Review 0/3  0/2 0/1 
 

 

 



November 13, 2023 Communications Report 

 

The 2024 I’On Community Directories have arrived! Mary and Emily picked up 700 

copies and dropped off 400 for the I’On Trust to assemble with the Luminary Kits. 

All residents that participate in the Giving Lights event will receive a copy of the 

directory on the day of the event. Any leftover directories will be given to the 

Welcome Committee Chair and the Assembly management office. Residents who 

do not participate in the Giving Lights can pick up a copy of the directory in the 

management office. Each property is permitted to receive one copy of the 

directory. 

 

The final cost for the printing was $6,184.53. Mary sold 9 ad spaces this year, 

totaling $4,625.00 in ad revenue. Therefore, the full cost of the directory printing 

was $1,559.53.  

 

Now that Mary has returned from maternity leave, she will be reaching back out 

to the ECO Group about getting them up on the community website.  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 


	November 2023 Agenda
	Draft October 16 2023 Board Meeting Minutes ES_
	Executive Dashboard 10.31.23 rev1
	Amenity Report
	L&I Board Report November 13 2023 rev 1
	Charleston Tree Experts Proposal OWNERS
	November 2023 Covenants Report
	October 2023 IDC Report
	November 2023 Communications Report 



